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Certified Mail -_Rctum Receipt Requested #7003 6500 0003 0874 1842

Joe Dorman
Tie Tek, LLC.

- 429 S. Mcmory Lanc
Marshall, TX 75670

RE: 1In the Matier of Tie Tek, LLC., Docket No. EPCRA-06-2009-0512
Pear Mr. Dorman:

: Enclosed is the fully cxecuted Complaint and Consent Agrecment and Final Order
(CAFQ) that has been filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk. You have thirty (30) days from the
effective date of the CAT'O to pay the $14,185 civil penalty to EPA as set forth in section V
beginning on page 5 of the CAFQ. The effective date is the date the CAT'O is filed with the
Regional Hearing Clerk.

In the event you should have any further questions or concerns regarding this matter
please contact Stan Lancaster at 214.665.8034. Your cooperation in expediting the settlement of
this case 1s most appreciated.

. Sincerely yours

Carl E. Edlund, P.E.
Director
Multimedia Planning and
Permitting Division
Enclosure (1)

Internet Address (URL) « hitpwww epa.gov
Recycied/Recyclable » Printed with Vegetable Ol Based Inks on Recycled Paper {Minlkmum 25% Postconsumer}
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§
IN THE MATTER OF: § R
| §  DOCKET NO. EPCRA 06-2009-0512
TIE TEK, LLC. §
MARSHALL, TEXAS § COMPLAINT AND
§  CONSENT AGREEMENT AND
§ FINAL ORDER
RESPONDENT $
§
COMPLAINT AND

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

The Director, Multimedia Plannin g and Permitting Division, United States Invironmental
Protection Agency, Region 6 (“EPA™) as Complainant, and Tie Tek, LLC. lpcated in Marshall,
Texas (hereinafter “Respondent™), in the above refercncéd action, have consented to the terms of
this Complaint and Consent Agreement and Final Order (“Complaint” and “CAFO”).

NOW:THEREF ORE, before the taking of any testimony, without any adjudication of any
issues of law or fact hexcin, the parties agree to the terms of this Consent Agreement and Final
Order.

L.
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

. This enforcement proceeding is instituted by EPA pursuant to Section 325(c) Title
HI of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1 10_45({:), (also known
as the Emergency Planning and Commurity Right-to-Know Act of 1986, [“EPCRA”]) which

authorizes the Administrator to bring an administrative action to assess a penalty of up to
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$25,000" for each violation of Section 313 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023 (relating to submission
of toxic chemical releasc forms). This proceeding was instituted by the issuance of a Complaint
aﬁd Notice of Opportunity for Hearing [hereinafter “Complajnt”] mcorporated herein,

2. The Complaint alleges Respondent violated regulations proinul gated pursuant 1o the
Act.

3. For purposes of this proceeding, Rcspondcﬁt admits the jurisdictional allegations of
this Complaint; however, Respondent neither admits nor denies the specific factual allegations
contained in this Complaint.

4.  Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO hereinafter recited and consents
to the assessment and payment of the stated civil penalty in the amount and by the method set out
in this CAFO.

5. By signaturc on this Complaint and CAFO, Respondent waives any right to an appeal
of this proceeding.

6. Respondent represents that it is duly authorized to execute this CAFO and that the
party signing this CAFO on behalf of the Respondent is duly authorized to bind the Respondent

to the terms and conditions of this CAFO.

"The Civil Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule of December 31, 1996 (61 Fed. Reg. §9360) provides for ten percent
(10%) increases [n the statutory penalty provisions cited in the EPCRA § 313 Enforcement Response Policy (ERP). August 10,
1992, The wen percent {10%) increase is effective for violations which occur between the 1996 and the 2002 calendar years. The
statutory maximum penalty for this time period is increased from $25,000 to $27.500. The Civil Penalty Inflation Adjustment
Rule of February 13, 2004 (69 Fed. Reg. 7121) provides for a further increase in the statutory penalty provisions in the ERP by
* 17.23% for vielations beginning with the 2003 calendar year. Violations of EPCRA § 313 for the 2003 calendar year, and
thereafter, shall have the statutory maximum penalty increased from $27.500 to $32,500.
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7. Respondent agrees that the provistons of this CAF( shall be binding on its officers,
dircctors, employees, agents, scrvants, authorized representatives, successors, and assigns in their
official capacity.

' IL
STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

8. Section 313 of EPCRA, and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.22, 372.23, and 372.30, require the
owncr or operator of a facility that: (a) has 10 or more full-time cmployees; (b) is an
establishment with a primary Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) major group or imiustry
code listed in § 372.23(a), or aprimary North American Industry Classification System (NAICS)
subsector or industry code listed in § 372.23(b) or § 372.23(c); and ¢) "manufactures, processes,
or otherwise uses” a toxic 313 éhenﬁica] listed under subsection 313(c) of EPCRA and 40 C.F.R.
§ 372.65, in excess of the threshold quantity established under Section 313(f) of EPCRA and 40
CFR.§§ 3?2 25 and 372.28 during the calendar year, to complete and submit a Toxic Chemical
Release Inventory Form R to the Administrator or EPA and to the State in which the subject
facility is located by July 1, for the preceding calendar year, for each toxic chemical known by
the owner or operator to be "manufactured, processed, or otherwise uscd” in quantitiles exceeding
the cstablished threshold quantity during that preceding calendar year.

9. Asset forth in Section 313(f) of EPCRA and 40 C.F.R. § 372.25, the reporting
threshold amount for toxic chemicals “manufactured or processed” at a facility is 25,000 pounds
for calendar years subsequent to and including 1989. The reporting threshold for a toxic
chemical “olherwisé used” at a facility is 10,000 pounds for calendar years subsequent to and
including 1987, Thrcsholds for pérsistenl bicaccumulative toxins (PBT’s) are individually fisted

at40 C.FR. § 372.28.
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: 1L :
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

10.  Tie Tek, LLC., is a Limited Liability Company authorized to do business in the
State of Texas. The Respondent’s address at 429 S. Memory Léne, Marshall, Texas is a plape of
busincss for the ResPondcnt. | |

11. Respondent is a “person” as that term is defined by Scction 329(7) éf EPCRA,
42 U.S.C. § 11049(7).

12, Respondent 1s the owner or operator of a “facility” as that term is defined by
Section 329(4) of EPCRA,42 US.C: §1 1049(4). |

13. Respondent's facility has 10 or more "full-time employees,” as that term fs defined
by 40 CF.R. § 372.3.

14, Respondent's facility is in covered NAICS Code 326199, all other plastics product
manufacturing. -

15. On or. about January 25, 2008, Respondent consented to the inspection of the

facility by a representative of the U.S. EPA, pursvant to Scction 313 of EPCRA.

16. Respondent failed to accurately report zinc oxide for calendar years 2005 and 2006.

Zinc oxide 1s a chemical category within the meaning of 40 C.I'.R. §§ 372.4 and 372.65.

17.  During calendar years 2005 and 2006, the toxic chemicals lis_ted in Paragraph 16 of
this Complaint and CAFO wcre either “manufactured, processed or otherwisc uscd” as those
terms are defined by Scction 313(b) of EPCRA, 42 US.C. § .l 1023(b), and 40 C.FR. § 372.3, at

Respondent's facility.
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18.  The toxic chemical listed in Paragraph 16 above, was uscd in excess of threshold
- quaﬁﬁl_ics for the respective years, pursuant to Section 31 3(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11023(c)
and 40 C.F.R. §§ 372.25 and 372.28.

19.  According to information supplicd by Respondent, the facility failed to report zinc
oxide for calendar years 2005 and 2006.

Iv.
VIOLATIONS

2(). Respondent's late submission of the 2005 and 2006 Form R’s for zinc oxide
constitutes a failure to timely report, a violation of 42 UJ.S.C. § 11023(a) ﬁnd 40 C.F.R. §
372.30(d).

V.

CIVIL PENALTY AND TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

21.  For the rcasons set forth above, Respondent has agreed 1o pay a civil penalty which
has been determined in accordance with Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 11045{(c), which
authorizes EPA 1o assess a civil penalty of up to Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000 )* per
day for each violation of EPCRA. Upon consi'deration of the entire record hcrcin; including the
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, which are hereby adopted and made a part hereof, and
upon consideration of the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the alleged violations, and
wiih respect 1o the Respoﬁdent, its culpability, history of prior EPCRA § 313 violations, and
ability to continue in business, it is ORDERED that Respondent be assessed a civil penalty of
FOURTEEN THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-FIVE DOLLARS AND NO CENTS

(514,185).

2 1bid.
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22.  Within thirty (30) ddyb of Respondent’s recelpt of this fully executed Complaint
and CAFO, Respondent shall pay the asscssed civil penalty by cashier’s check or certified check,
made payable to “Treasurer, United States of America, EPA - Re gion 6.” Payment shall be
remitted in onc of threc {3) ways: regular U.S. Postal Service mail, to include certified mail;
overnight mail; or wire transfer. For regular U.S. Postal Scrvice mail, U.S. Postal Service
certified mail, or U.S. Postal Service express mail, the check(s) sh.ould' be remitted to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

For overnight mail (non-U.S. Postal Service, e.g. Fed Ex), the check(s) should be remitted to:

U.S. Bank

Government Lockbox 979077 US EPA Fines & Penaltics
1005 Convention Plaza

SL-MO-C2-GL.

St. Louis, MO 63101

with a phone number of (314) 418-1028.
For wire transfer, the payment should be remitted to:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York

ABA = 021030004

Account = 68010727

SWIFT address = FRNYUS33

33 Liberty Street

New York, NY 10045

Ficild Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read “D 6801072? Environmental
Protcctlon Agency” :

6
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As an alternative to the above methods of payment, EPA now has the flexibility to accept
payment via credit cards and bank transfers over the internet. Visit www.pay.gov and see
Attachment 1 for directions if remittance is to be made in this manner.

PLEASE NOTE: Docket number EPCRA 06-2009-0512 shall be clearly tvped on the check

to ensure proper credit. The check shall also be accompanied by a transmittal letter and shail

reference Respondent’s name and address, the case name, and docket number of the
admimstrative complaint and CAFO. Respondent’s adherence o this request will ensure proper
credit is given when penalties arc received for the Region. Respondent shall also send a
simultaneous notice of such payment, including a copy of the money order, or check, and
transmittal Ictter fo the following:

Stan Lancaster

Toxics Section (6PD-T)

U.S. EPA, Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200

Dallas, Texas 75202-2733;
and

Region 6 Hearing Clerk

U.S.EPA Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200

Dallas, Texas 75202-2733

23. If Respondent fails to submit payment within thirty (30) days of the effective

date of this Order, Respondent may be subject to a civil action pursuant to EPCRA § 325(1).

42 U.S.C. § 11045(%), to collect any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty, together with mierest,

handling charges and nonpayment penalties as set forth below.
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24, Pursuant to 31 U.S..C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess interest and penaltics or
debts owed to the United States ahd a charge to cover the (;ost of processing and handling a
delinquent claim. Respondent shall pay the following amounts:

~ a. Interest. If EPA does not receive payment within thirty (30) days of the due

date, and the Respondent cannot provide evidence lh;lt payment was properly sent, interest will
accrue on the amount due from the due date at the current annual rate.prescribed and published
by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(a)(1) and
4 C.F.R. §102.13(c).

b. Handling Charge. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 (e)(1), a monthly handling

charge of $15.00 shall be paid if any portion of the assessed penalty is more than 30 days past
due.

¢. Nonpayment Penalty. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717(e)(2), a nonpayment

penalty of six (6) percent per an-num shall be paid on any portion of the assess'ed penalty that is
more than 90 days past due, which nonpayment penalty shall be calculated as of the day the
underlying penalty first becomes past duc. 40 C.F.R. §§ 102.13(d} and (e).

25. ° This document is a “Final Order” as that térm is defined in the Enforcement
Response Policy for Section 313 of the Emergency Planning and Community Ri ght-lo-Knoﬁf Act
(1986) and Section 6607 of the Pollution Prevention Act (1990), dated August 10, 1992, for the

purposc of demonstrating a history of “prior such violations.”
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VL.
RETENTION OF ENFORCEMENT RIGHTS
26. EPA does not waive any rights or remedies available to EPA for any violations by
the Respondent of Federal laws, regulations, statutes, or permitting programs. |
27.  Nothing in this CATO shall relieve Respondent of the duty to comply with all |
applicable provisions of Scction 313 of EPCRA |
| VIH.
COSTS

28. Each party shall bear its own costs and attorneys fccs.
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IT 1S SO AGREED:

FOR THE RESPONDENT:

Date: : &ék(_—/ ,ﬁ mﬂﬂ«/

/ J#e Dojman _ 3
Cre RETHEY b GrnjEstrae COUMEEL

Tie Tek, LLC.
Marshall, TX 75670

F_OR THE COMPLAINANT:

Date: 2, ‘,Zf%)? L&
Pl Carl E. Edlund, P.E.

Director

Multimedia Planning and Permitting Division

U.S. EPA Region 6

Dallas, TX 75214
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In the Matter of Tic Tek, LILC.. Marshall, Texas, Docket No. EPCRA 06-2009-0512 _

FINAL ORDER

Pursuant to Section 325(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §1 1045(0), and the Consolidated Rules
61’ Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalti.es,.40 C.F.R. Part 22, the
foregoing Consent Agreement is hercby ratified. This Final Order shall not in any casc affect the
right of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or
criminal sanctions for any violations of law. This Final Order shall resolve only those causes of
action alleged in the Complaint. Nothing in this Final Order shall be construed to waive,
extinguish or otherwise affect Respondent’s (or its officers, agents, scrvants, cmployeés,
successors, or assigns) obligation to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes
and regulations, including the regulatiéns that were the subject of this action. The Respondent is
ordered to comply with the terms of settlement and the civil penalty paymént instructions as set
forth in th¢ Consent Agreement. In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(b), this Final Order shall

become ellective upon [iling with the Regional Ilearing Clerk. .

Dated Tjwl? » 2009 . M@ @“"’H

Michael C. Barra
Regional Judicial Officer
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

i H :

I hereby certify that on the / day of y/]l fr‘vﬁ Y , 2009, the original and one
copy of the foregoing Complaint and Consent Agreement and Final Order (*Complaint and
CAFO™) was hand delivered to the Regional Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA - Region 6, 1445 Ross

Avenue, Suite 1200, Dallas, Texas 75202-2733, and a true and correct copy was delivered to the

following individual(s) by the method indicated below:

CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED # 7003 0560 0003 0874 1842 -

Joe Dorman

Tie Tek, L1.C.

429 S, Memory Lane
Marshall, TX 75670

U.S. EPA Region 6
Dallas, Texas
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